BYLAWS OF RED PELOTON A CALIFORNIA NONPROFIT PUBLIC BENEFIT CORPORATION

ARTICLE I. OFFICES

- Section 1. *Principal Office*. The principal office of the corporation shall be located in Santa Rosa, California 95404, Sonoma County, California.
- Section 2. Other Offices. The corporation may have offices at such other places, either within or without the State of California, as the Board of Directors may designate or as the affairs of the corporation may require from time to time.

ARTICLE II. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- Section 1. *General Powers.* The business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors.
- Section 2. Number, Term, and Qualifications. The number of Directors constituting the Board of Directors shall be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors but shall be no less than 6 and no more than 10% of the total club membership. Each director shall hold office until resignation, retirement, removal, disqualification or his or her successor shall have been elected and qualified.
- Section 3. Election of Directors shall be elected at the January Board meeting each year by a majority vote of the Board, or when positions need to be filled due to vacancies, changes, or resignations. Those persons who receive the highest number of votes at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be deemed to have been elected. The vote will include directors whose term of office expires with such meeting. If directors are not elected at such meeting, they may be elected at any regular or special meetings of the Board. Unless otherwise terminated, directors are elected for two-year terms in the first meeting of the calendar year. Five (5) of the board positions are open in a given year. At anytime in any meeting, the Board may excuse any non-voting members and meet in "executive session".

Section 4. Removal and Resignations.

Removal: Any director or officer may be removed at any time with or without cause by the vote of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which quorum is present.

Resignations: Except as provided below, any director may resign by giving written notice to the President, President-elect, or Secretary of the Corporation. The resignation shall

take effect as of the date the notice is received or at any later time specified in the notice and, unless otherwise specified in the notice, the resignation need not be accepted to be effective. If a director's resignation is effective at a later time, the Board may elect a successor to take office as of the date the resignation becomes effective. Except on notice to the Attorney General of California, no director may resign if the Corporation would be left without a duly elected director or directors in charge of its affairs.

- Section 5. Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the elected directors may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors even though less than a quorum, or by the sole remaining director. A director elected to fill a vacancy shall be elected for the unexpired term of his predecessor in office.
- Section 6. *Chairman of Board.* For this corporation, the President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and perform such other duties as may be directed by the Board, in the capacity that a Chairman of the board might otherwise fulfill.
- Section 7. Compensation. The Board of Directors may not compensate directors for their services as such but by resolution may pay a fixed sum for attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors and may provide for the payment of any or all expenses incurred by directors in attending regular and special meetings of the Board.

ARTICLE III. PURPOSES AND OBJECTIVES

- Section 1. *Non-profit Corporation.* This corporation is a non-profit public benefit corporation and is not organized for the private gain of any person. It is organized under the Non-profit Public Benefit Corporation Law for charitable purposes.
- Section 2. Tax-Exempt Status This corporation is organized exclusively for charitable purposes and for the purpose of promoting health, skills, accountability, leadership by mentoring younger riders, community outreach service for cycling specific events and sharing a sense of team camaraderie for athletes of all ages within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 or the corresponding provision of any future United States internal revenue law. Notwithstanding any other provision of these bylaws, this corporation shall not, except to an insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or exercise any powers that are not in furtherance of the purposes of this corporation and the corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on by:

ARTICLE IV. DEDICATION OF ASSETS

Section 1. The properties and assets of this non-profit corporation are irrevocably dedicated to charitable purposes. No part of the net earnings, properties, or assets of this corporation, on dissolution or otherwise, shall inure to the benefit of any private person

or individual or any member or director of this corporation. On liquidation or dissolution, all properties and assets and obligations shall be distributed and paid over to an organization dedicated to charitable purposes, provided that the organization continues to be dedicated to the exempt purposes as specified in Internal Revenue Code 501(c)(3). That organization shall be voted on at the final meeting, if it qualifies as a distributee under this Article.

ARTICLE V. MEMBERSHIP

- Section 1. Refer to the Red Peloton Member Handbook for information on Membership.
- Section 2. Fees and Dues. Each member must pay an annual membership as determined and in amounts to be fixed from time to time by the board of directors.
- Section 3. *Termination of Membership*.
 - (a) Causes of termination. The membership of a member shall terminate upon occurrence of any of the following events:
 - (i) the resignation of the member,
 - (ii) the failure of the member to pay dues or assessments, if required, within the times set forth by the board of directors,
 - (iii) the determination by the board of directors or a committee designated to make such determination that the member has failed in a material and serious degree to observe the Code of Conduct of the corporation or has engaged in conduct materially and seriously prejudicial to the interests and purposes of the corporation.
 - (b) Procedure for expulsion. Following the determination that a member should be expelled under subparagraph (iii) above, the corporation shall follow the expulsion procedure set forth by the Board of Directors.
- Section 4. Transfer of Membership. No member may transfer for value a membership or any right arising from such membership. All rights of membership cease upon a member's death.

ARTICLE VI. MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

- Section 1. Regular Meetings. A regular series of meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at such a place as the Board may designate. In addition, the Board of Directors may provide, by resolution, the time and place, for the holding of additional regular meetings.
- Section 2. *Special Meetings.* Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called or at the request of the President or any three (3) directors.

- Section 3. Notice of Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held without notice. The person or persons calling a special meeting of the Board of Directors shall, at least 7 days before the meeting, give written notice thereof delivered personally or sent by US mail or by e-mail to each director at his address as shown by the records of the corporation.
- Section 4. Waiver of Notice. Any director may waive notice of any meeting. The attendance by a director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.
- Section 5. *Quorum.* A majority of the members of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors.
- Section 6. *Manner of Acting*. Except as otherwise provided in these bylaws, the act of the majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors.
- Section 7. Presumption of Assent. A director of the corporation who is present at a meeting of the Board of Directors at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken unless his contrary vote is recorded or his dissent is otherwise entered in the minutes of the meeting or unless he shall file his written dissent to such action with the person acting as the secretary of the meeting before the adjournment thereof or shall forward such dissent by registered mail to the Secretary of the corporation immediately after the adjournment of the meeting. Such right to dissent shall not apply to a director who voted in favor of such action.
- Section 8. *Informal Action by Directors.* Action taken by a majority of the directors without a meeting is nevertheless Board action if written consent to the action in question is signed by all the directors and filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board, whether done before or after the action so taken.
- Section 9. Committees of the Board. The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present, may designate directors to constitute an Executive Committee and other committees, each of which, to the extent authorized by law and provided in such resolution, shall have and may exercise all of the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the corporation. The designation of any committee and the delegation thereto of authority shall not operate to relieve the Board of Directors, or any member thereof, of any responsibility or liability imposed upon it or him by law.

ARTICLE VII. OFFICERS

Section 1. Officers of the Corporation. The officers of the corporation shall consist of a President, a Vice President, a Secretary, a Treasurer, and other officers as the Board of Directors may from time to time elect. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, but no officer may act in more than once capacity where action of two or more officers is required. In addition, the Board of Directors may from time to time appoint one or

more persons to staff positions, including the position of Executive Director, to carry out the instructions of the Board of Directors and the Corporation's officers.

- Section 2. Election and Term. The officers of the corporation shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors and each officer shall hold office for one year or until his successor shall have been elected and qualified. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.
- Section 3. Compensation of Officers. Directors and members of committees shall receive:
 - (a) no compensation for their services and
 - (b) such reimbursement of expenses as may be determined by resolution of the board of directors to be just and reasonable.
- Section 4. Removal. Any officer or agent elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board whenever in its judgment the best interests of the corporation will be served thereby; but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed.
- Section 5. President. The President shall be the principal executive officer of the corporation and, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, shall in general supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the corporation. He shall, when present, preside at meetings of the Board of Directors in the Chairman of the Board is not present or if there is no Chairman of the Board. He shall sign, with the Secretary, or any other proper officer of the corporation thereunto authorized by the Board of Directors any contracts, or other instruments which the Board of Directors has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or by these bylaws to some other officer or agent of the corporation, or shall be required by law to be otherwise signed or executed; and in general he shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as they may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.
- Section 6. Vice President. In the absence of the President or in the event of his death, inability, or refusal to act, the Vice President, unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors, shall perform the duties of the President, and when so acting shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. The Vice President shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him the President or Board of Directors.
- Section 7. Secretary. The Secretary shall: (a) keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors and of all Executive Committees in one or more books provided for that purpose; (b) see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws or as required by law; (c) be custodian of the corporate records and of the seal of the corporation and see that the seal of the corporation is affixed to all documents the execution of which on behalf of the corporation under its seal is duly authorized; and (d) in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors.

Section 8. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall: (a) have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the corporation; receive and give receipts for monies due and payable to the corporation from any source whatsoever, and deposit all such monies in the name of the corporation in such depositories as shall be selected in accordance with the provisions of Section 4 of Article VIII of these bylaws; and (b) in general perform all of the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to he or she by the President or by the Board of Directors, or by these bylaws.

ARTICLE VIII. CONTRACTS, LOANS, CHECKS, DEPOSITS AND GIFTS

- Section 1. Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers, select member or members, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.
- Section 2. Loans. No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the corporation and no evidences of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the Board of Directors. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.
- Section 3. Checks and Drafts. All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, issued in the name of the corporation, shall be signed by such officer or officers, of the corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. In the absence of such resolution, such instruments shall be signed by the Treasurer and countersigned by the President, Vice President, Secretary, or Executive Committee member of the corporation.
- Section 4. Deposits. All funds of the corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the corporation in such depositories as the Board of Directors may select.
- Section 5. Gifts. The Board of Directors may accept, on behalf of the corporation, any contribution, gift, bequest or devise for the general purpose or for any special purposes of the corporation.

ARTICLE IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1. *Indemnification.* Any person who at any time serves or has served as a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or in such capacity at the request of the corporation for any other corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, other enterprise, shall have a right to be indemnified by the corporation to the fullest extent permitted by law against (a) reasonable expenses, including attorneys' fees, actually and necessarily incurred by him in connection with any threatened pending or completed action, suit, or proceedings, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative, and whether or

not brought by or on behalf of the corporation, seeking to hold him liable by reason of the fact that he is or was acting in such capacity, and (b) reasonable payments made by him in satisfaction of any judgment, money decree, fine, penalty or settlement for which he may have become liable in any such action, suit, or proceeding.

The Board of Directors of the corporation shall take all such action as may be necessary and appropriate to authorize the corporation to pay the indemnification required by this bylaw, including without limitation, to the extent needed, making a good faith evaluation of the manner in which the claimant for indemnity acted and of the reasonable amount of indemnity due him.

Any person who at any time after the adoption of this bylaw serves or has served in any of the aforesaid capacities for or on behalf of the corporation shall be deemed to be doing or to have done so in reliance upon, and as consideration for, the right of indemnification provided herein. Such right shall inure to the benefit of the legal representatives of any such person and shall not be exclusive or any other rights to which such person may be entitled apart from the provision of this bylaw.

In addition to the foregoing, the Board of Directors shall have the right and power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any liability asserted against him and incurred by him in any such capacity, or arising out of his status as such, whether or not the corporation would have the power to indemnify him against such liability.

- Section 2. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the corporation shall be fixed by the Board of Directors.
- Section 3. Amendments. Except as otherwise provided herein, these bylaws or the corporation's articles of incorporation may be amended or repealed and new bylaws (or amended articles of incorporation) may be adopted by the affirmative vote of two thirds of the directors then holding office at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors at which a quorum is present, provided that at least ten (10) days written notice is given of intention to alter, amend, repeal or adopt new Bylaws (or articles of incorporation) at such meeting.
- Section 4. Books and Records. The corporation shall keep correct and complete books and records and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings of the Board of Directors and committees having any of the authority of the Board of Directors. The books, records and papers of the corporation shall be at all times, during reasonable business hours, be subject to inspection by any director. The articles of incorporation and the bylaws of the corporation shall be available for inspection by any member at the principal office of the corporation.

Certificate of Secretary

I, the undersigned, certify that I am the presently elected and acting Secretary of Red Peloton, a California non-profit public benefit corporation, and the above bylaws, consisting of seven (7) pages, are the bylaws of this corporation as adopted by unanimous written consent of the board of directors on November 9th, 2022.

Date: November 9, 2022

Secretary: Steve Reddie